
 

 
Page | 1  Phone No. (415) 899-8900 
 novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213 
   

 

 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Meeting Minutes 
 

Monday, December 12, 2022 – 7:00 pm 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Commission Present:  Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Gerber, Havel, Heath, 
and Tiernan 
 
Commission Absent: None 
 
Staff Present:  Planning Manager Steve Marshall 
 

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA 
 
 COMMISSION ACTION: Upon motion by Commissioner Derby and seconded by 

Commissioner Gerber, the Planning Commission voted 7-0 via roll call to approve the 
final agenda. 

 
 AYES:   Commissioners Crockett, Dawson Derby, Gerber, Havel, Heath, and Tiernan 
 NOES:   None 
 ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT:  None 
 Motion carried. 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

NONE 
 
D. CONSENT ITEM 
  

NONE 
 
E. UNFINISHED AND OTHER BUSINESS   
  
 NONE 

 
F. PUBLIC HEARING 
    

https://novato.org/


 

Page | 2  Phone No. (415) 899-8900 
 novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213 

 

 F.1. LANDING COURT HOMES  
 P2022-095; ENTITLEMENT TIME EXTENSION 
 CEQA EXEMPT: CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15183  
 APN 153-162-70; NORTH SIDE OF LANDING COURT 
 

Conduct a public hearing to consider and possibly adopt a resolution approving a 2-
year time extension of the vesting tentative map, design review, and density bonus 
approval granted for Landing Court Homes. 

 
Planning Manager Marshall introduced the item and reviewed the staff report. He noted Ken 
Bellucci was present to represent the project.  

 
The public comment period was opened. 
 
Emily Larson stated the Clausing Avenue neighborhood worked closely with representatives 
of Landing Court Homes to get the entitlements that were granted. She is glad to see the City 
would like to keep those entitlements. She understands the property is in escrow or is being 
been sold and asked if we know who the new owners are. She questioned whether Mr. Bellucci 
was the appropriate person to be asking for the entitlements [time extension] since he may 
not be the owner of the property. She mentioned speaking to neighbors closest to the property 
and the neighborhood is behind keeping entitlements as approved for the project.  
 
Ken Bellucci confirmed the property had been sold and the purchaser is AMG Corporation. 
He indicated the new owner intends to maintain the entitlements and operate the storage yard 
for some time. He reiterated the new owner intends to keep the entitlements as they are.  
 
Donna Bellucci-Rich said the same property manager operating the RV and boat storage 
business will continue to do so for the new owner. 

 
The public comment period was closed.  
 
Commissioner Derby asked if these entitlements must be adhered to. 
 
Planning Manager Marshall stated the property is designated for housing. While there is an 
approved project, an existing or new owner could request to modify or replace the entitlements 
and utilize any particular state housing law to achieve their project.  
 
Commissioner Derby observed its really state law driving the matter, not entitlements as they 
are today. 
 
Planning Manager Marshall agreed with Commissioner Derby and noted there is qualifying 
criteria under state law. 
 
Chair Tiernan asked if the matter [new or revised entitlements] would come back to a public 
hearing.  
 
Planning Manager Marshall stated a project would not necessarily return for a public hearing. 
He noted there are laws limiting reviews to ministerial actions - this could be a staff, design 

https://novato.org/


 

Page | 3  Phone No. (415) 899-8900 
 novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213 

 

review commission, or planning commission level review, but only a review based on objective 
standards and a ministerial process.  
 
Commissioner Heath asked to clarify if the site is staying an RV park for the foreseeable future 
and we’re voting on a 2-year time extension, is that covering a marketing period or is there a 
change in intention regarding housing.  
 
Donna Bellucci-Rich reiterated the new owner had retained the same property manager to 
continue managing property – business as usual for a while, but she didn’t know how long a 
while meant.    
 
Commissioner Tiernan asked if AMG invokes state standards there is criteria to be met and 
administrative review? 
 
Planning Manager Marshall confirmed most state laws have qualifying criteria – first to qualify 
a site as suitable for application of that law, then there are qualifying project components, such 
as affordability, and application of the city’s objective standards. He noted it was important to 
recognize that although there are objective standards, state density bonus law can be used to 
waive or reduce those standards.  
 
Commissioner Dawson asked if the project site was within a mile of the SMART station.  
 
Planning Manager Marshall stated he believes the project site is outside of a half-mile walking 
distance from the Downtown SMART Station.  

 
 COMMISSION ACTION:  Upon motion by Commissioner Dawson and seconded by 

Commissioner Derby, the Planning Commission voted 7-0 via roll call to adopt the draft 
resolution as presented by staff. 

 
 AYES:   Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Gerber, Havel, Heath, and 

Tiernan 
 NOES:   None 
 ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT:  None 
 Motion carried 
 
G. GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

 NONE 
 
H. COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS  
 
 Planning Manager Marshall noted this evening’s meeting was the last Planning Commission 

gathering of 2022 since the regular meeting of December 26, 2022, falls on a day city offices 
are closed.  

 
I. ADJOURNMENT  
 
  The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 7:20 PM. 

https://novato.org/


 

Page | 4  Phone No. (415) 899-8900 
 novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213 

 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly adopted at the Planning 
Commission meeting of January 9, 2023. 
  
/Steve Marshall/ 
Steve Marshall, Planning Manager 

https://novato.org/

